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Questions are numbered sequentially and grouped by theme or service category. In cases where there were multiple questions related to the same topic, these questions are grouped and labeled A, B, C, etc. and only one answer is provided. Sometimes the question text refers to a specific category, but if it is relevant to other categories, it is grouped and labeled accordingly. Questions submitted in advance of the RFP are also included in this document.

1) Overall Questions

Question 1:
(Question submitted in advance) Can you please tell me if an agency does not wish to be the lead agency are they then excluded from the bidding process? Do subcontractors have to wait until a secondary process is initiated?


Agencies that wish to provide the HIV prevention services described in this RFP, but that do not wish to be the lead agency, should consider collaborating with another agency that is willing to be the lead. There are several different types of collaborations. Refer to page 132 of the RFP and RFP Appendix A-3, Item #6 for more information on collaborations. HPS has no plans at this time to issue any other RFPs, and applicants should not assume there will be another opportunity to apply for HPS funding. All agencies wishing to provide the HIV prevention services described in this RFP should submit an application to this RFP.  

Question 2:
(Question submitted in advance) Per page 16 of the RFP, which states that the same person can play multiple program roles, can the program coordinator take on the role of evaluation manager? 



Yes.

Question 3:
(Question submitted in advance) Per page 15 of the RFP, which states that we must be licensed to do business in the City and County of San Francisco and be a non-profit, are we required to fill out the LBE certification as well as the Non-Profit Entity Certification forms?

 
No. LBE certification would apply to a for-profit small or micro business that has had its principal place of business in San Francisco for more than six months, among other stipulations. (For more information or assistance, contact the San Francisco Human Rights Commission [HRC] at 415-252-2500 or www.sfgov.org/sfhumanrights.)

Question 4:
(Question submitted in advance) Is the appropriate Commodity Service Code to be checked off in the New Vendor Number Request Form, 1) Human, AIDS Support, Non-Medical or 2) Services, Medical & Health, Med/Health; AIDS? 


You may list any and all commodity codes that match or closely match your services. It is better to err on the side of too many than too few. Our contract database uses the commodity code field to locate vendor records, so don’t leave it blank.

Question 5:
(Question submitted in advance) On page 10 of the RFP, next to the 15-20% of resource allocation going to IDU, there is an asterisk that says that “approximately half of these resources should reach MSM-IDU.” This requirement does not reflect our current syringe access clientele. And given that syringe access services are anonymous, how are we supposed to determine the sexual orientation or sexual risk behavior of the clients who come to syringe access services?


This question and answer relates to the RFP in general and also specifically to RFP Category 8: Citywide Syringe Program. The chart on page 10 reflects the HIV Prevention Planning Council (HPPC) resource allocation recommendations from the 2010 San Francisco HIV Prevention Plan. These recommendations relate to all funding for services, not just Category 8 funding. It is HPS’s responsibility to ensure that approximately half of IDU funding is allocated to MSM-IDU, across all services described in the RFP.

It is the responsibility of all applicants in all categories, including Category 8, to propose recruitment strategies and services that are responsive to the epidemiology of HIV in San Francisco. In the case of Category 8, this means developing a programmatic approach to ensure that appropriate subgroups of IDU are reached, taking into account subgroup needs, subgroup population sizes, etc. HPS will not require individual-level data collection for syringe access and disposal services.

For the purposes of Category 8 proposals, applicants should develop a best estimate of the number of MSM-IDU contacts you intend to reach. HPS acknowledges that this is only an estimate. What is more important is that the proposed program “ensures that services reach and meet the specific needs of the following IDU subpopulations: MSM, youth, females, transpersons, and males who have sex with females.” (RFP, p. 118)
Question 6:
(Questions submitted in advance)

A. Should agencies wishing to propose offering HIV RNA testing include this service as part of the agency proposal?

B. For agencies proposing conducting HIV RNA testing, what criteria will the SFDPH HPS establish for offering RNA testing?

C. For agencies proposing conducting HIV RNA testing, what costs would be covered by the SFDPH?


RNA testing will be supported only by Category 1: Community-Based HIV Testing (not in Categories 4-7: Special Projects). Applicants in Category 1 should not include HIV RNA testing services as part of their proposal narrative (see RFP page 18, Table 1.1). All Category 1 applicants interested in providing RNA testing should complete HPS Custom Attachment 1 indicating their interest in and capacity for providing HIV RNA testing (as well as anonymous testing). HPS will negotiate among successful applicants to ensure the availability of RNA testing. Negotiations will include a discussion of criteria for offering RNA testing and which costs will be covered by SFDPH.

Question 7:
When the RFP questions instruct bidders to state “what percent of [staff] time is allocated to service delivery,” please clarify what you mean by service delivery. Does it include documentation, collateral work, etc. or do you mean direct face-to-face service with clients?


“Service delivery” means any work done by the staff person that is related to planning and implementing the proposed program. It should include face-to-face time with clients, any work done on behalf of the clients, and documentation. Time spent on non-program activities (e.g. staff meetings) should not be included. Time spent on data collection and evaluation should not be included; include time spent on data collection and evaluation in the relevant section of the narrative as indicated.

Question 8:
What does “collaboration” mean operationally?

HPS welcomes collaborative applications that will improve the system of prevention on the ground, that are synergistic, and that can enhance services to clients. It is up to applicants to develop an operationalized collaboration in a way that makes sense for the proposed program. Regardless, all collaborative applications should result in one cohesive, seamless program even though more than one agency is involved.
Question 9:
(For San Francisco services) Can we partner with an agency that is based outside of San Francisco?


Yes, as long as services are provided in San Francisco.

Question 10:
If we want to serve the same population, in the same service area, but in separate geographic locations with distinct and dedicated staff at each location, should we submit one proposal overall, or one proposal for each location?

Applicants are limited to one proposal per category. Proposals may include services at different sites or geographic locations. 

Question 11: 
A.
Can proposals be submitted with a funding level that falls between the approximate award ranges or outside the range? If so, for categories requiring HIV testing, how will the testing targets (related scoring criteria) be adjusted?

B. 
What is the vision for the level of funding awards in each category? In each category there are approximate award amount ranges listed. Are there different floors and ceilings for award levels, going below and above the listed ranges?
C. 
Is the upper end of the approximate award amount range for each category a strict budget cap? For example, will you consider funding two proposals under Service Category 2, one for $600,000 and one for $300,000?

D. 
Sources of funding for the RFP include the federal government, the state, and the city’s general fund. Given the budget shortfalls cutting back for both state and the city, and the possibility of a reduced CDC award, do you anticipate the amounts available for these sources might be lower than you projected?

Proposals with funding levels within or outside of the range are acceptable. Per RFP page 127, “Applicants may apply for any reasonable grant amount. HPS has provided the approximate number of awards and award amount ranges as guidance to applicants.” Applications should request a reasonable dollar amount sufficient to deliver the services described in the RFP. The testing targets will not be adjusted.


Final funding amounts are approximate and depend on a number of factors. This is our best estimate of funding available given the information we have now.

Question 12:
A. 
Will there be ramp-up time built into contracts during year 1?
B. 
In the non-scored portion of the proposal, there is a question related to a potential start-up period. Especially for projects involving new collaborations and innovative approaches, start-up periods are necessary for ongoing success. What is reasonable from SFDPH’s perspective? This can impact year 1 targets, particularly for HIV testing. Will this be taken into account when scoring and rating?


There will be ramp-up time built into contracts. Applicants should discuss their ramp-up/start-up needs in the non-scored section of the proposal. HPS does not have any guidelines about what is considered a “reasonable” start-up period, but per the minimum qualifications in all categories, applicants will have some relevant experience so it is expected that programs will not need to start completely “from scratch.” Note that the scored part of the proposal should describe the program as it would be when fully operational (i.e. as if there were no start-up period). The final start-up period will be determined during negotiations with successful applicants.
Question 13:
Is there at cap on fringe benefits in our budget proposals?

Currently the department has a fringe benefit cap of 25 to 28%. Anything above that has to be submitted to the System of Care director of any contract under any System of Care section, and that needs to be justified and approved by the section’s director. So you know, we are meeting on this subject next week, department wide, to talk about the different fringe caps, and indirect caps the department has across the board. We would like to have a standard fringe cap and indirect cap, but are also taking into account that we have a lot of grants that support our projects and sometimes there are requirements by the grant that determine what those caps will be. So, even though one System of Care section may have a high fringe cap and indirect cap and another does not, it may be because of the requirements.
Question 14:
What is the allowable font size, font type, and margin size? Can smaller font size be used for tables and charts?

Font size, etc. is outlined on page 144 of the RFP, Number 3, under “Proposal Format.” The requirements are 12-pt font size, 1.5 spacing between lines, and 1-inch margins. Tables should be in 12-pt type, but can use single spacing. Charts imported from another program such as Excel where it is not possible to control the font size can use smaller type. With regard to other formatting issues, applicants must follow the instructions outlined in the RFP.
Question 15:
A.
My nonprofit agency provides free/low cost media production services (PSAs, fundraising videos, web content) for HIV/AIDS service agencies. While we probably don’t qualify to be a lead agency, how can we contribute and/or add value to a lead agency’s proposal?
B. 
As part of your outreach to your target population, do you envision the use of video? I would like to address the importance of video presentations to increase prevention efforts. Videos can be in the form of DVDs or uploaded to social media such as Facebook, YouTube, etc. Thank you.
HPS welcomes collaboration among agencies to create the most effective HIV prevention programs. Agencies who would like to collaborate should feel free to reach out and contact whoever they think is helpful in collaborating.

Question 16:
Given that women have the fastest-growing rates of newly diagnosed infections, why do the service areas in this RFP effectively exclude women as an eligible target population? Under the current contracts, women are eligible to receive prevention services.

The categories and the resource allocation in the RFP are consistent with the HIV Prevention Plan, the resource allocation plan that has been recommended by the HIV Prevention Planning Council (HPPC). In San Francisco, the vast majority of people at risk for HIV infection are in three groups: 1) Men who have sex with men (the majority of whom are gay men); 2) injection drug users (including women); and 3) transfemales who have sex with men. In the RFP, the resource allocation reflects the epidemic. HPS feels strongly—as does the HPPC—that we need to put the resources where the epidemic is and the best way to keep women who do not inject drugs safer and protected from HIV is to address HIV in the above-mentioned populations. Note that the EASE Program will serve women.

Question 17:
Must the objectives our HERR proposal duplicate the System of Prevention objectives listed on page 32? Since many of those objectives are for 2017 and not 2012, should our objectives describe how the first year of our work will contribute to our being able to eventually achieve the 2017 objectives?

No. The objectives do not have to duplicate the System of Prevention objectives listed on page 32. You can develop your own objectives, but they should be linked to the System of Prevention objectives. Applicants should develop a timeline for their objectives that they think is going to show the best argument for how those System of Prevention objectives will be achieved within the parameters of the RFP. There is no requirement about whether you should do one year of objectives or five years of objectives; that’s up to the applicants to figure out how to present the best proposal.
Question 18:
Of the 1.6 million condoms to be distributed by 2012, how many are to be distributed through HERR programs, how many though PWP, and how many through Service Category 6? We need to know so that we can include appropriate costs in our budget.

This should be a programmatic consideration. Knowing that that’s our citywide goal, and given the program you are proposing, what do you think is programmatically appropriate, reasonable and realistic, and will contribute to expanding access to condoms in the city? Thinking from the perspective of the System of Prevention, proposals should show how all the applications will contribute to the System of Prevention. A lot of the details of this will be worked out in negotiations.

Question 19:
Do you have baseline costs per contact for HERR and PWP and Category 6? Are there any definitions of what constitutes a “contact?” It seems in general as though the scoring for this section could encourage applicants to prioritize providing a lot of short contacts instead of a smaller number of in-depth contacts.

HPS does not have a standard definition of what constitutes a contact. The length of the contact, the number of contacts, and the number of unduplicated clients should be based on the RFP requirements and goals, as well as what the applicant thinks is reasonable and realistic. There is no baseline cost per contact. A lower cost per contact will not necessarily merit a higher score; the score will be based on whether the cost per contact is reasonable given the scope of work.

Question 20:
From where will the city collect data? Is the Behavioral Risk Assessment a thing of the past? How will HPS know if the drivers are changing?

HPS is currently working on an evaluation plan for the system of prevention. It will include multiple data sources, including data collected by funded programs and data collected by SFDPH. Changes in drivers will be included as part of the plan, but no definitive approach to evaluating changes in drivers has been established yet.

The question refers to the Behavioral Risk Assessment, but most likely refers to the current HPS requirements for HERR and PWP which is called “Core Variables.” The new HIV prevention names-based system will incorporate the current data requirements but may also include new data.
Question 21:
If an agency applies for a service mode in a certain category (for example community-based testing in Category 1), are they then excluded from applying for a category where that service mode is also included (such as Category 5 or 6 which focus on Latino and/or African American communities and have testing as a required intervention/service mode)?


No. The only restriction is that HPS will not fund more than a total of 6 proposals per agency across all categories.

Question 22:
Are DPH clinics prohibited from applying for any categories? If so, which ones?

DPH clinics are eligible to apply only in Category 3: Prevention with Positives (PWP). All DPH clinics are invited to submit an application, with the understanding that if they submitted an application to the recent Centers of Excellence (CoE) RFP and the CoE receives a PWP award under that RFP, the clinic will not be considered for an award through the HIV Prevention Section’s RFP.

Question 23:
Just to make sure, the only HRC form we need to submit is Form 3, yes? There’s no need to submit all the other forms with “N/A” written on them?
The HRC Form 3 is definitely required for this RFP.  

Even though the LBE sub-consulting goals have been waived for this solicitation, we recommend completing the forms in HRC Attachment 2. On each of the forms you may fill out the relevant portions of the form and then mark not applicable (N/A) on the parts that are not applicable.  For HRC Form 2A please complete the relevant sections and note N/A on the sections that are not applicable. For HRC Form 2 you may place N/A on the top of the form and submit it.

Question 24:
Briefly, how do we know if an entity is a sub-contractor (with an MOU required) or just a vendor?
A sub-contractor would involve an on-going relationship over a period of time during the course of the service period, and would also involve a monthly method of billing/payment for the duration.  A vendor would involve a one-time or non-ongoing purchase situation and would not involve a monthly method of payment.
2) Questions About the Letter of Intent/Subcontractors

Question 25:
A.
Does the lead agency need to list all subcontractors on its LOI?
B.
If we’d like to include a social marketing component, are we required to name our contractor (graphic designer, social marketer) in the LOI and include them in the proposal or can we determine that when a program is approved?
C.
If an LOI states a collaboration that does not materialize, can the lead agency submit? If not, does DPH want us to submit a revised LOI once we know for sure who the collaborators will be?

D. The letter of intent asks you to name collaborators. If an organization hasn’t officially decided to collaborate by 12/15, can we add collaborative partners when the proposal is submitted?

E. Any chance process could be extended to allow for true, meaningful collaboration/system development? The challenge is in the possible collaborations.
An LOI is an intention to submit a proposal, with the collaborative partners or subcontractors listed, not an obligation to submit a proposal.  It is also not an obligation to use partners/subcontractors that are no longer willing/able to participate or are no longer viable for some reason and for which substitutions need to be determined.

SFDPH uses the LOIs to screen for possible conflicts of interest in the selection of reviewers. It is therefore preferable for all potential subcontractors to be listed on the Letter of Intent (LOI). If a lead agency later submits a proposal that doesn’t include all of those subcontractors, that is acceptable. It is recommended that applicants list all potential collaborators in the LOI, and then if they are not included in the proposal, that is OK. In cases where a subcontractor withdraws from the collaboration after the LOI submission, applicants are permitted to invite another subcontractor to join the collaboration. In this case, applicants are not required to and should not submit a revised LOI.

If an applicant is proposing a one-time purchasing of a product (such as social marketing materials/campaign) as opposed to an ongoing subcontractor relationship, the vendor does not have to be identified in the LOI or in the proposal. A vendor can be identified after a contract is awarded.

There will not be any changes to the LOI timeline. The timeline is based on beginning services on July 1, 2011, working backwards from this date. 
Question 26:
If we plan on being a “subcontracted” partner for a category in the RFP, do we still submit an LOI?


No, only the lead agency needs to submit an LOI, but the LOI needs to list all of the subcontracting agencies.
Question 27:
Can an agency be the lead in one category and sub-contractor in another?

Yes.

Question 28:
Provided the applicant is a 501(c)(3) agency, may a for-profit entity serve as a sub-contractor on our proposal?

Yes.
Question 29:
A. 
Will you share the e-mail addresses of people here today to facilitate contact with potential subcontractors? If yes, when?

B. 
Can you send out emails right away? Tuesday would only give us a day.

A contact list was sent on Monday, December 13,  and will also be attached to the e-mail containing the Bidders’ Conference notes.
3) Questions Related to the EASE Program

Question 30:
Please tell us more about SFDPH EASE, the rationale behind the formation of this new service, how it will be rolled out, and what providers can expect from the program.

For details on what EASE consists of and the rationale, see slides 17-20 of the Bidders’ Conference presentation. SFDPH will be developing the EASE program and protocols over the next several months and will continue to further refine the program in collaboration with successful RFP applicants. Providers can expect that the EASE program will be the primary provider of linkage to HIV primary care and partner services for newly diagnosed individuals. The programs will also provide support around re-engagement in HIV primary care for clients lost to care when other re-engagement attempts have not been successful.

Question 31:
A. 
(Question submitted in advance) When putting together our program model, what allocation can we reasonably expect to receive for the SFDPH EASE program staff person who will work on-site? If we have additional linkage needs beyond what the EASE person can provide can we provide additional linkage services ourselves or is this only to be provided by the EASE person? 

B. 
If a site has a successful internal linkage program can it be used as a complement to EASE services (in Category 1) or does HPS want testing programs to stop their linkage services?


For Category 1: Community-Based HIV Testing, SFDPH will provide up to a 1.0 FTE staff person to work on site. For Categories 4-7, the EASE staff person will be available by phone/pager or other means. Regardless of the Category, the goal is to provide a continuum of service that appears seamless to the client. This could mean that agency staff participate in providing linkage. For the purposes of the proposal, applicants should describe how they envision integrating the EASE staff person. HPS will negotiate with successful applicants to finalize the model and determine how best to divide roles and responsibilities between the EASE staff person and agency staff.

Question 32:
A. 
In regards to Category 7, page 102 of the RFP, bulletpoints #7 and #8, if a TFSM individual tests positive for HIV, can our organization refer them to primary care, or do we have to send the client (in person) to DPH?


The issue is when someone tests positive, according to the Iris Center and their particular client base, the last thing in the world the person is going to want to do is go over to a government agency and get registered or anything. A lot of times they just shut themselves up in their house for three months. Does that person have to physically go to DPH after having tested positive to get referred to primary care or can the Iris Center refer the person to primary care themselves?

B. 
In communities who are very suspicious of city/state government involvement (e.g. undocumented, criminalized), EASE may seem like mandatory reporting or disclosure of confidential information. How will DPH address these concerns?

Ultimately, the goal is for clients to be linked to HIV primary care. This could mean that agency staff participate in providing linkage if that’s what would facilitate this goal. Applicants should propose the best approach based on their experience and discuss in their proposals how they will collaborate with the EASE staff to create a seamless continuum of services for the client. The last thing any of us want is for someone to test positive and be locked in a house for three months and not access the care and services that he or she needs. HPS will negotiate with successful applicants around what that communication and relationship with the EASE staff looks like. There is no intent on the part of the RFP that somebody who tests positive will be “sent” to DPH or elsewhere. HPS sees this as an ongoing relationship and collaboration so that the EASE program can help the agency and client better link to care in any appropriate way. HPS views the EASE program as facilitating that process.

HPS wants to make sure we develop the EASE program so it does address these concerns. The emphasis is on hiring culturally competent staff to work with clients and with funded programs, and our goal is to work with the clients who are the most disadvantaged and who really need the health services that we provide. HPS really wants community engagement as the EASE program develops around addressing this issue. 

These issues are something we can only address together. How do we best work with people who have been marginalized and stigmatized in society and how do we make sure that our system of prevention is really reaching the people who most need to be reached?

Question 33:
For Category 1: Community-Based Testing, Glide envisions having multiple testing sites in various community venues. How does this sit with the EASE program?

Proposals should describe how they see the EASE program and EASE program staff working within their proposed program. HPS will work with successful applicants to make sure the communication and relationship between the agency and the EASE program is working to meet the needs of clients and achieve the RFP goals.
Question 34:
How will you ensure cultural and linguistic competency within the EASE program? Many organizations currently have staff that provide this service.

HPS agrees that providing cultural and linguistic competency to meet the populations most at risk is critically important, and we see the EASE program as enhancing what we already have in the community for clients. The goal is to bring the resources and skill set the community has to the table with the EASE Program to make sure that people are best linked to care, offered partner services, and/or are re-engaged in care and they get the services that they need. 

4) Questions Related to HIV Testing (Categories 1, 4-7)

Question 35: 
(Questions submitted in advance)

A. 
With the recent FDA approval of the INSTI HIV antibody test and other devices on the market, I am wondering if the SFDPH HPS will continue its use of the OraQuick devices or if you anticipate a change in the product you supply agencies to conduct HIV antibody testing?

B. 
Which HIV antibody testing kit(s) does the SFDPH HPS anticipate using as a result of this RFP?


This question and answer relates to HIV testing provided under RFP Category 1: Community-Based HIV Testing and Categories, 4, 5, 6 and 7: Special Projects. The INTSI HIV antibody test is currently only FDA approved for use in a laboratory setting. Applicants proposing a rapid testing model should follow the algorithm outlined in the RFP on page 17 and can propose to use any FDA-approved CLIA-waived test. These are listed at http://www.cdc.gov/hiv/topics/testing/rapid/rt-comparison.htm.

HIV testing technology is rapidly changing, and HPS will work with successful applicants over the course of their contract to implement the most up-to-date testing technology as appropriate. In the future, HPS may decide to standardize rapid testing technologies across agencies or to allow flexibility, based on feasibility and cost considerations.

Question 36:
The RFP requires applicants/grantees to provide HIV testing and if they are not a test center to “collaborate” with a test center with three years experience. What is the applicant to do if existing test centers do not want to partner because of limited resources or that partnering/collaborating will conflict with them about the proposal?


For Category 1: Community-Based HIV Testing, the minimum qualification is at least 3 years of experience providing HIV testing. For this category, HPS encourages applicants without such experience to reach out to agencies with such experience in order to meet the minimum qualification and to submit a competitive application. For Categories 4-7: Special Projects, note that the minimum qualification is at least 3 years of experience providing HIV-related or similar services to the target population; it is not required that the applicant have HIV testing experience.
Question 37:
Are the targeted deliverables (i.e. 5,000 HIV tests) an unduplicated client count or NOC?

The 5,000 tests are the number of contacts (NOC). The 5,000 HIV tests will most likely include unique individuals that test only once as well as people testing more than once. Given that the message is that MSM, IDU, and TFSM should test at least every 6 months, it would be a programmatic success to have repeat testers. The proposal should be specific about what level of repeat testing the program is trying to achieve and why this is appropriate given the needs and risks of the population. HPS wants programs to avoid over-testing and under-testing to the extent possible.
Question 38: 
Will limits on volunteers able to be trained for testing be imposed agency-wide, or specific to service categories?

 
No limits have yet been set regarding the number of state-certified IRRC counselors for which HPS will support the training costs, either within service categories or agency-wide. This issue will be discussed and resolved during negotiations with successful applicants. 

Question 39:
A. 
Did HPS spread its citywide goal for number of tests performed across the service areas? Is the minimum number of tests required in Service Area 1 separate from the minimum number required in Service Areas 4-7? In other words, if a contractor under Service Area 1 (testing) performs a test via MOU at a Service Area 5 program, does that test count toward the Service Area 1 minimum, or the Service Area 5 minimum (or both)?

B. 
CBOs are to test 500 to 1,000 and test centers 5,000-8,000 per year. In the collaboration does the 500-1,000 of CBO testing reserve part of the 5,000-8,000 required of HIV test centers?


The goal numbers are separate (i.e., mutually exclusive). A test in the scenario described above would not count towards the testing goals in both categories. If an applicant is selected for funding in more than one category, HPS will work with the applicant to determine how best to “count” tests with regard to the targets for each program.

Question 40:
Will DPH continue to provide the HIV testing kits and cover confirmatory testing?


Yes.
Question 41:
A. 
The RFP asks that, for community testing, 6,000 HIV tests be conducted. If an agency seeks to offer half of that (3,000 tests), are they excluded from applying? If so, do they then have to wait for an opportunity sub-contract?

B. 
Must each program funded through Category 6 provide at least 500 HIV tests annually? If we’re only applying for, say, half the funding, do we only need to provide 250 tests?

Applicants must propose programs that meet the “program requirements” outlined in the RFP, including the minimum number of tests, regardless of the amount of funding they are requesting.

Question 42: 
In collaborating with an HIV test center, who assumes the cost for HIV testing? E.g. staff, costs, HIV test center overseeing the HIV testing program at CBO.

This should be determined by the collaborating agencies and presented in the proposal. HPS does not have a specific requirement.

Question 43:
If a bidder applies for two or more categories that all require HIV testing, could this have a negative impact on the proposal score or potential to be funded in one or multiple categories?


No. Proposals in each service category will be scored and ranked independently of those in other categories.

Question 44:
A. 
Are there both IRRC units and HIV testing units, separately in the Category 1 testing RFP?

B. 
Are there any pre-set modes of service for us to use when preparing our budget?

Units of service will be addressed in the negotiation process. There are no pre-set modes of service. Applicants should use modes of service compatible with proposed services goals and objectives (see RFP page 128 for more details).

Question 45:
The community HIV testing RFP says that the money may not be used in a “medical or clinical setting.” At Glide our testing offices are located on the same floor as the medical clinic. Does that mean that Glide cannot use the money to test at Glide?

HPS does not want people who are at risk for HIV who are going for medical care in a medical setting where testing can be reimbursed as part of that medical visit to be told to go across the hall and get tested at a community-based site. In situations where a community-based testing model would co-exist or be co-located with a medical or clinical setting, the idea is that the medical provider would be responsible for ordering HIV testing for their patients, and the testing would be reimbursed through other venues. This would be presumably separate from any other community-based testing model. It would not be acceptable for doctors or other healthcare providers to say “go across the room to get HIV testing while you are getting all your other medical care here.”  

Question 46:
A. 
Are state-certified IRRC counselors replacing CTL test counselors and are there different training requirements?

B. 
Please explain how “state certified IRRC counselor” is different from how IRRCs are implemented currently.

CTL test counselors have a new name: state-certified IRRC counselors. Pre- and post-test counseling is now being called IRRC, but state-certified IRRC counselors will still be required to meet the state training requirements for HIV test counselors. Testing technology and testing requirements could change, but regardless, state-certified IRRC counselors will still need to meet the state’s requirements.
Question 47:
Do social marketing campaigns qualify as a creative means of getting people to test/helping change community norms about testing every six months?
Applicants should propose interventions/strategies for which they can present a strong justification as to their ability to achieve the goals and objectives stated in the RFP. Applicants are invited to use the 2010 HIV Prevention Plan which describes a range of strategies and interventions. It is up to applicants to select and justify the best mix of strategies and interventions to achieve the goals and objectives.
5) Questions Related to Multiple Categories
Question 48: 
The cost efficiency chart (e.g. the one on page 37) asks for “total annual budget for this agency.” Are you asking for the agency’s overall global budget (all programs and activities), or do you mean the total budget for that specific service area proposal?


This question refers to the charts on the following RFP pages: 25, 37, 49, 65, 81, 98, and 113. Applicants should not include the agency’s overall global budget. The phrase in the chart “total annual budget for this agency” should read “total annual program budget.” If the proposal includes only one agency, the total will reflect the total amount of the proposal. If the proposal includes a lead agency and one or more subcontractors, provide a chart for each agency, and the total in each should reflect each agency’s portion of the proposal budget.

Question 49:
(Relates to Categories 2 and 4-7)

A. 
What is the difference between the “intensive HERR” in Category 2 and the HERR in Categories 4-7? Why isn’t intensive HERR also being promoted for transfemales who have sex with males (TFSM)?

B. 
What is intensive HERR?
Intensive HERR refers to individual- and/or group-level services that serve clients in an ongoing way, providing in-depth support to individuals. HPS believes that intensive HERR is needed in Category 2 to effectively address drivers. Services in Categories 4-7: Special Projects should take a holistic approach to prevention and can include both intensive HERR and/or less intensive HERR efforts as needed to meet the target population needs and stated objectives.

Question 50:
(Relates to Categories 1-6) The RFP requires organizations applying for funds to serve MSM to have a plan for addressing TMSM within their programs. How will DPH want organizations to submit or have these plans? Who might ask an agency applying for funds for this plan? Also, does DPH have examples of such plans? What support exists for agencies to develop these plans?

HPS will be working on this issue between now and July. HPS would like to be able to have examples of plans for agencies to use and to provide support for the development of plans. We will solicit community input between now and July to get ready for this requirement. The TMSM plan requirement will be addressed in program negotiations with successful applicants; this issue does not need to be addressed in the proposal narrative. It’s mentioned in the RFP so agencies are aware that successful applicants will be required to work with HPS to ensure there is a TMSM plan in place.
Question 51:
(Relates to Categories 1, 2, 3, 6, 7, and 8) Will there be an opportunity to reach out to the Asian & Pacific Islander community as this was not mentioned as one of the priority groups in the RFP?

Yes. There are multiple categories in the RFP where Asian & Pacific Islanders can be reached: Categories 1, 2, 3, 6, 7, and 8. There are definitely opportunities for that. Although the RFP doesn’t have a specific emphasis or project request for Asian & Pacific Islanders, HPS is looking for a comprehensive system of prevention that reaches the people most at risk for HIV in San Francisco.
Question 52:
(Relates to Categories 2 and 3)

A. 
When the RFP says “No more than one proposal will be funded that serves the same or similar sub-populations,” what does that mean? Programs serving MSM in the Western Addition and in Bayview might both serve primarily African American men, for example, but because of their locations, they would be serving distinct populations, and clients from one neighborhood are not likely to be able or willing to cross town into the other neighborhood to access services. Is geographic location enough of a distinction to differentiate two otherwise similar sub-populations?

B. 
On page 30 of the RFP, it says that HPS will not fund more than one HERR proposal for the same or similar MSM subpopulations. Does this mean that our HERR proposal must identify the subpopulations we intend to reach? What if we intend to conduct a program that will reach MSM across a broad spectrum? Note, this same question would also apply to PWP (page 41). 
C. 
What are the criteria for determining whether a subpopulation is the “same" or "similar" for purposes of funding one proposal over another?


The purpose of these restrictions is to ensure that all high-risk populations are served across the system of prevention. It is not possible to determine what constitutes a “same or similar subpopulation” without seeing the actual proposals and how the target populations are described. Using the example of geography described above, it would depend on the population/proposal whether or not the different geographic locations constitute same or different subpopulations. Applicants should submit proposals for populations and programs that will maximize the program’s contribution toward reducing new HIV infections.

Question 53:
(Relates to Categories 1-7) Please explain how an HPS provider (contractor) might obtain exception from the syringe program, as mentioned in the RFP. If we would like to apply for an exception, should we include that in our proposal, or is that a process that will happen during the implementation phase?

Applicants should not include a discussion of this requirement in their proposals. HPS will work with successful applicants to determine whether an exclusion is appropriate.
Question 54: 
(Relates to Categories 1-7)

A. 
What will the HIV prevention names-based system on page 33 of the RFP look like? When will it be up and running? How much data entry will be required? Will clients be able to opt out?
B. 
The RFP states that “applicants should describe a proposed data collection method and process in their narrative” for Category 1 (and 2-7). Given that testing programs are transitioning to the names-based HIV prevention data system early in the grant period, how should we address our data collection method and process, as it will be prescribed and is (so far) unknown to us?


HPS will be working on the development of the names-based system over the next several months. The HPPC will have some input on the direction of the names-based system. This is going to be an ongoing process. HPS will work closely with prevention agencies as the system is developed and implemented. 

The goal is to have a system available for pilot testing on July 1. The amount of data entry required will depend on the required variables and how it’s structured. HPS doesn’t know that yet, but it does say in the RFP within each service category whether or not the program will be expected to do its own data entry. Clients opting out is a question to be considered during the HPPC and community input process as the system develops.

Regarding how to address the names-based system in proposals, applicants should answer the specific questions outlined in the narrative instructions for each category. The questions do not specifically ask applicants to address the names-based system, and HPS does not expect details with regard to how agencies are going to work with that names-based system. 

Question 55:
(Relates to Categories 2-7) One of the objectives for viral load suppression (p. 32) is that “by 2017, 90% of HIV-positive clients in HPS-supported programs will have had at least two HIV primary medical care visits in the prior 12 months, at least 3 months apart.” Wouldn’t that objective potentially discourage providers from taking on new clients? New clients might be the people who are least likely to have had at least two HIV primary care visits in the last 12 months (some of them might have only just found out they are HIV-positive and some might have been disengaged from care), so taking on new clients could wreck your chances of meeting the 90% threshold.

HPS will work with funded programs to determine how best to deal with newly recruited clients. The intent of the objective is to look at the results of the program’s efforts with respect to clients’ engagement in care, so it will be important to measure this as a “post-intervention” objective. Per the RFP instructions, applicants should develop program-specific objectives that will contribute to this system of prevention objective. 
6) Questions Related to Category 1 Only

Question 56:
For community-based HIV testing, the RFP states that programs must serve the target populations citywide. How do you define “citywide?” Does testing have to be offered at locations throughout the city?


The goal of this is that testing be accessible to populations at risk for HIV citywide; they don’t necessarily need to be provided in locations throughout the city, but please consider what you think would be the most effective program at reaching the populations at risk for HIV who need to increase their status awareness.
Question 57:
Is it possible to be a lead agency applying under Community-Based HIV Testing, when you provide access to testing/counseling but contract with another agency to perform the actual testing?


Yes, as long as the subcontractor meets the requirements in the RFP regarding HIV testing experience.
7) Questions Related to Category 2 Only

Question 58:
For Category 2, when addressing drivers, is the intent to decrease drivers, and/or increase status awareness with those populations that engage in drivers of HIV? (Or treatment adherence for HIV?)

The main focus of Category 2 is on reducing the drivers. Like all programs, Category 2 programs will be part of the overall system of prevention and should strive to achieve the system of prevention goals, such as increasing status awareness, increasing viral load suppression, reducing sexual risk behavior. Category 2 programs will be held accountable for their contribution to the system of prevention objectives presented in Table 2.2 on page 32 of the RFP.
8) Questions Related to Category 3 Only

Question 59:
You recommend 13 pages for Section 3 of the PWP narrative. But, within that, you’re recommending two pages for recruitment and retention, five pages for PWP program description, two pages for the staffing plan, and one page for the description of how our program will lead to our outcomes. That’s 10 pages, not 13.


This is an error. The bottom line is that the total narrative may not exceed 25 pages. Page numbers for individual sections and questions are guidelines only. The guideline for Section 3 is 13 pages, not 10. Applicants should use whatever length they deem appropriate for the sub-questions in Section 3.

Question 60: 
Are there SFDPH prevention case management guidelines and standards that we should follow when we implement prevention and case management as part of prevention with positives?

The best place to look is in the HIV Prevention Plan on pages 246-247 where there is a description of prevention case management. There are a number of resources listed there, and applicants should use these to the extent that they are relevant.

Question 61:
How should we determine whether our programs have achieved viral load suppression? We are not a primary care clinic and will not be doing viral load testing on the MSM we work with.

Per the narrative instructions, applicants should develop objectives that include a brief description of how they will be measured. Objectives can be measured in a number of ways: through self-report, through secondary data sources available through HPS, or other means. HPS will work with successful applicants to negotiate appropriate measures.
Question 62:
Am I reading it correctly that if our PWP program is in a community-based, non-primary care setting, then all our clients are presumed to be Priority 1 population members, and our proposal will automatically receive 5 extra points?


No. Extra points will be awarded if and only if the applicant can show sufficient evidence or make a compelling argument that they are reaching the priority populations as listed.

9) Questions Related to Category 5 Only

Question 63: 
A. 
Recommendation #5 of the Latino Action Plan states: “Programs that welcome and target Latino English speaking gay men need to be developed. However, this should not be done at the expense of existing programming designed for immigrant, Spanish-speaking men (p. 102, 2010 SF HIV Prevention Plan).” And yet the RFP Category 5 Special projects to address HIV health disparities amongst Latino MSM, with a focus on gay males, states the population to be targeted as: “Latino MSM with a focus on gay males who are monolingual English-speaking or bilingual Spanish/English-speaking. The program may also propose to serve monolingual Spanish-speaking Latino MSM, but this should not be the primary population of focus.” Could you please explain the rationale for not following the recommendation of the Latino Action Plan? How will agencies that apply for this category (or for that matter, any category) be evaluated on their capacity to use the recommendations of the Latino Action Plan?
B. 
Why does the RFP Category 5 suggest explicitly that programs cannot propose a focus on Spanish-speaking men, when the Action Plan explicitly argues against that strategy as the way to reach out to English-speaking men? The fact that the Action Plan research found Spanish-speaking Latino MSM in San Francisco to be at less HIV risk bears witness to the fact that currently funded programs are doing their prevention work successfully. If a program shows prevention success with a given population, does it mean that they are not needed anymore? By not allowing applicants to propose programs that focus on Spanish-speaking men, the RFP punishes and threatens to eliminate the proven effective prevention work in the City.


The RFP does not state that programs cannot propose a focus on Spanish-speaking MSM. The RFP states that Spanish-speaking men cannot be the primary focus. The RFP allows ample opportunity within the requirements to meet the HIV prevention needs of Spanish-speaking MSM.


The RFP does not preclude agencies that currently serve Spanish-speaking men from developing new models to respond to the priorities outlined in the RFP. The RFP also explicitly states that programs may propose to serve monolingual Spanish-speaking MSM.


There is nothing in the RFP to preclude agencies that have shown HIV prevention success with Spanish-speaking MSM from submitting a responsive application, as long as the proposed program: 1) can be justified as contributing substantially to reducing new HIV infections, 2) is in line with RFP requirements and priorities, and 3) includes a primary focus on English-speaking or bilingual Latino MSM.

Please note that Category 5 is not the only category where Latino MSM, including Spanish-speaking Latino MSM, can be reached. Services in Categories 1, 2, 3, 6, and 8 can also reach this population.


Regarding evaluation of proposals, there are 3 points allotted in the scoring criteria for reviewers to evaluate the extent to which the Latino Action Plan recommendations are appropriately incorporated (see RFP page 82).
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